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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Woodville, Mississippi 
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, \vhich 
collectively comprise Town of Woodville, Mississippi's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit \Ve conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gm1er11me11f Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United Stutes, Those standards require that \.Ve plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial stutements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
welI as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

\Ve believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Tmvn of \Voodviile, Mississippi as of September 30, '.2020, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, \-vhere applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Members: American Institute of CPAs, Mississippi Society of CPAs, Louisiana Society of CPAs 



Other Matters 

Required Supplemrnlary l11.frm1111tio11 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 8 and the Budgetury Comparison Schedule - General Fund, the 
Schedule of Town of Woodville, Mississippi's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the 
Schedule of Tmvn of Woodville, Mississippi's Contributions on pages 37 through 39 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amerirn, \Vhich consisted of 
inquiries of manngement about the methods of preparing the information and cornparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses lo our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, \Ve do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information bemuse the limited procedures do not provide us \Vith sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance, 

Other l11forw11llon 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise Town of Woodville, Mississippi's basic financial statements. The Oilier Information, as described in 
the accompanying table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of frdeml Rcg11ln!icl/ls Part 200, Uniform Adrninislraliue 
Requirewe11ls, Cost Principles, and Audit Req11ire1w:11is for Fedcrnl Awards, and is also not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 

The Other Infor111alio11 is the responsibility of management and vvas derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures1 including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial staternents or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance \Vith auditing standards generaIIy accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the Other i11fon1111tio11 is fairly stated, in all tnaterial respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a \vhole. 

Other Reporting Required by Gm.1ernme11t Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Goz1en1111enl Auditing Sta11d11rds, vve have also issued our report dated December 2, 2021, on 
our consideration of T mvn of Woodville, Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance vdth certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance \vith 
Goucrnmrni A11diti11g Stmufords in considering TO\.Vn of \.-Voodville, Mississippi's internai control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Natchez, i\1ississippi 
February 28, 2022 

2 



Required Supplementary Information (Part I) 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

3 

The management of Town of \rVoodville, Mississippi offers readers of Tmvn of Woodville, Mississippi's financial 
statements this narrative overvievv and analysis of the financial activities of Town of \Voodville, Mississippi for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. This Management's Discussion and Analysis is designed to provide an 
objective analysis of Tmvn of Woodville, Mississippi's financial activities based on currently known facts, decisions, 
and conditions, It is intended to provide readers with a broad overvie\v of Town of Woodville, Mississippi's finances. 
It is also intended to provide readers \vith an analysis of Tmvn of 'vVoodviile, Mississippi's short-term and long-term 
activities based on information presented in the financial report and fiscal policies that have been adopted by Town of 
VVoodville, Mississippi. Specifically, this section is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial 
issues, provide an overviC\v of Tmvn of \Voodville, Mississippi's financial activity, identify changes in Town of 
\Noodville, Mississippi's financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year chaUenges), identify 
any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and identify individual fund issues or 
concerns, 

Town of \Voodville, Mississippi presents its financial statements under the reporting model required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34 and the subsequent amendments issued with GASB 
Statement 63. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction \Vith additional 
information presented throughout this report 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This section is intended to serve as an introduction to Town of Woodville, Mississippi's financial statements. Town of 
VVoodviile, Mississippi's basic financial statements consist of the government~\\1ide financial statements, fund 
financial statements, and notes to the financial statements. lhis report also contains supplementary information, and 
other information, which is in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-Wide financial Statements 

Government-wide financial statements are designed by GASB Statement 3,f and the subsequent amendments issued 
with GASB Statement 63 to provide the readers 1,.vilh a concise "entity-1,vide" Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Activities, \.Vhich seek to give the user of the financial statemenls a broi!d overview of Tovvn of \Voodville, 
Mississippi's financial position and results of operations in a manner similar to private sector businesses, 

The Statement of Net Position presents infonnation on all of Tmvn of VVoodvilie, Mississippi's assets and liabilities 
using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. The 
difference between the tvvo is reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as 
a useful indicator of whether the financiaI corn..iition of Town of VVoodvil1e1 Mississippi is improving or \Veakening. 

The Statement of Activities presents information which shmvs how the government's net position changed during 
this fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the 
timing of the related rnsh flmvs, Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
only result- in cash flmvs in future periods uncollected taxes). 

Each of these reports is broken down bet\:veen governmental activities and business~typc activities. Governmental 
activities nornrnlly are those activities that arc supported taxes, licenses, permits, fines, and intergoverrnT1ental 
revenues; for example, the police and fire departments. activities arc functions that are intended to 
support their costs through charges for services or fees; such as the water, seiver, and gas departments. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Govcrnmcnl~Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may, over time, serve as d useful indicator of d government's fmancial cond11ion. 
Town's assets t'XCl'eded its liahih!ics by $3,096,893. This represents an mcn.>ase 
Of !l11s h1l<1! ncl position ;m101m!, a S2,J77,596 deficit 1s m unrcstrictt'd net position. The Tl1wn's 
govl'rnml'ntal itClivilies and $1,0l l,35,J from busim'ss-typc activities. 

At the close nf the most recent fiscal yc<1r, the 
of $4-48,638 from the pnnr year. 

1wl position is comprised of (S9!,l,461) from 

·nw folhi\\'ing is a nmdcnsed sta.lcnwnt of the Town of \Vnpdv1lle's net position as nf September 30, 2020 and 2ffl9: 

Assets 
Cll!Tl'Ht dnd other ,lSSl'tS 

C1piL1l ass:l'ts, nl'I 

Told! dSSl'ts 

Deterred Outflows o! Resources 

Liabil1tii•s 
Otlwr liabditics 
Long-term liablhtks 

Tota! Habi!itws 

Ddvrrcd lnflrvws of Rl'StHirccs 

Net Pnsilion 
Net inveslnwnl in 

Rcstrktl:d for· 
pn1jecLs 

:-.ervice ,1ml ()!her 
Unrcs!nc!ni 

Tut.ii 11ct position 

asseL'i 

---
s 220,168 s 
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s 5 ------------
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s 

279,.780 s 

s 

18,81'.l s 

1,268,219 s 

5 

---

1,071,760 

----

356,67-l 

3,219,616 

STJ,5-17 
222,35·! 

?,7,837 
4,011,:134 

-----
s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

$ 

537,509 

?,9-1,562 

3,296,692 

6,073 
119,903 
Hl9,195 

3,531,865 

Totals 
2020 

s 1,291,928 S 
7,213,735 

s ___ ..cm ,0-111 s 

s 

s 

s 

$ 

68?.,-195 S 
-1,878,}!5 

4,482,751 

531,5-17 
222,35-1 

_(?,139,7591 
3,096,893 

s 

s 

s 

s 

2019 

7;i7,-IO-t 
6,016,08-l 
()]5'.1.,.188 

49,260 

674,1-12 
3,-195,6'.·B 
,i,169})75 

18)H?, 

-L5fr-l,9l"l 

6,075 
119,903 

2,613,960 

By !ar, the portion of lhl' Town's net posilinn (S.t,482,751 or HS%) reflects its investml'nl in c,1p1t,1l assets (e.g., land, hui!dmgs, mi.lchinery and equipment, 
Tnwn infrastructure, etc) less any rvlatl'd debt used to acquire those as!-iets that are still outstanding. T!it~ Town uses these capit.11 assets to provide services to 
cilizt>ns; consequently, these assets arc not av.1i!abll• for future spending. Although the Tmvn's cap1t,1l assets are reported net of related debt, it should he noted 
that !he resources needed to repil)' !his deb! must be provided from other sources, since capital assets themselves cannot he used lo liquidate these liabilities. 

The remaining balance is made up o! a ddici! in unrestricted net position of ($2,177,5%), and restricted net position of $753,901, ,vhich ,ire n.1stric!nl for 
debt service and construction projects. 

Tlw Town has tot.11 outstanding debt t if 52,868,574, which was used lo f m,mce snme of the 57,213,735 in rnpita! assl't.s. 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEIVIENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

ThP Tinvn's gnvcnurn:ntal activitil'5 increased net hy S],.i·l·L This increase is mainly due lo an decrease in expenditures lo the general fund. 

The is a summa1y of tlw Town's staternenls of activities for the years 1:nded Seplernber 30, 2020 and 2019: 

Re\'t'llllt:5 

Pmgr;im revenues 
(;crwral revenues and tr,msfors 

Total n.:v1:mtL'S ,md 
tr,msfers 

Sanitation 

Ctnnbirn.:l! 
h1terPSl on long-term dd~t 

Total expensl's 

fnncc:1se (dccn:a1;c) in nct position 

Net pnsition, 

Prior pcriod adjustmt'nt 

Net position, 

Goucnm1mt11f Activiltcs 

s 

Cnvcrrnnental Activities 
2020 ''--cs2"0"1 '"1 ---
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1,0(i6,169 

5 l8,3h'.1 5 1,20(1,6.ft{ 

s 

s 

s 

s 
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('ll_:l_,:16ll 

s 

s 

s 

s 

321,S8·1 
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,109,84,l 

91,8() ! 

67,.15:1 

::m,879 
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(736,63-l) 

{917,905) 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

$ 

s 

Business-Type Activilies 
2020 2019 

1,65cl,9·l·l 

1,53'.1AS5 

1,088,261 

1,088,26 l 

·1-15,19·1 

3,531,865 

3-l,295 

4,0l i,354 

:, 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

2,096,.196 

1,932,837 

1,,1110,806 

I,,l00,806 

2,999,8.1,l 

3,531,865 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

Totdls 
2020 

1,791,560 
860,258 

2,651,818 

125,049 
S5b,615 
253,767 
1111,887 
-17,809 

1,088,261 

2,613,960 

'.1,0%,8lJ3 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

:2019 

2,2Jtl,975 
902,510 

3,133,185 

:121,584 
560,298 
309,8-l·I 

91,861 
67,453 

Ul!IJ,801, 
30,879 

2,782,725 

350,760 

2,263,200 

2,613,960 

The governnwnlal activities of the Town include general gnvcrnrnt'nt, public safety, streets, sanitation, cemetery, housing, and rayment of interest on 
debt. In that reventll'S normally associoted wilh municipal Of1l'ratlons (e.g., sales tax, property tax, franchise fees, licenst' fees, permits, fines, and 

are in.sufficient for the funding of these activities, the Town relies on transfers of excess revenue from its enlerprisL' h:md to partially cover 
lhc cosl of dctivi!ies. 

'J' 
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B11si11ess~ Type Acli-uilies 

6 

The business-type activities of the Tmvn are those lhat charge a fee to customers for the services provided. The Town has one 
business-type activity, which is accounted for in lhe enterprise fund. The Tmvn uses the enterprise fund to nccount for the 
revenues and expenses related to the provision of water, sewer, gas, and MTC services. 

The following is a summary of the utility operating results of the business-type activities of the To\vn, Capital grants, general 
revenues, and transfers have nol been included. 

fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2019 
Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2020 
Increase (decrease) from prior year 

Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2019 
Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2020 
Increase (decrease) from prior year 

Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2019 
Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2020 
lncrcasc (decrease) from prior year 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

Water 

436,823 $ 

418,256 

(18,567} $ 

Water 

372,459 s 

320,901 
(51,558) 

\Valer 

64,364 s 

s 

Operatin , Revenues 

Sewer Gas MTC 

254,018 s 496,540 s 142,267 

245,503 481,554 93,318 
(8,515} s (14,986) s (48,949) 

enses 

Gas ~!TC 

221,925 s 603,388 s 169,056 

467,640 67,860 
s (135,748) s (101,196} 

/\:et Income (Loss) from Operations 

Gas MTC 

32,093 s (106,848) s (26,789) 

H,818 13,914 25,458 
(17,275) s 120,762 s 52,247 

$ 

$ 

s 

s 

s 

s 

Total 

1,329,648 

1,238,631 

(91,017) 

Total 

1,366,828 

1,087,086 
(279,742) 

Total 

(37,180) 

151,545 
188,725 
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The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about To\vn of Woodville, Mississippi's most 
significant funds-not Town of Woodville, Mississippi as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that Town of 
Woodville, Mississippi uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for a particular purpose. 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi currently maintains four individual governmental fund types. These fund 
types are the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Agency Fund. Information is 
presented separately in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet (Statement C) and in the Governmental Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Statement E) for the General Fund. The 
General Fund is considered to be a major fund. 

Town of VVoodvilie, Mississippi adopts an annual budget for the General Fund, A statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the General Fund is presented in the Required Supplementary 
Information (Part Il), vvhich compares actual revenues and expenditures to the original budget and amended 
budget figures. 

Fi11a11cial Analysis ofToum oflNoodvillc1 lv1issfssippi's Govcrn111r:11tal F1111ds 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of $39,466, which is a 
decrease of 517,722. This decrease was primarily due to an increase in transfers in from the proprietary fund, 
Transfers in amounted to $165,000 and SlH,469 as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. $73,017 of the 
fund balance was assigned. The remaining fund deficit of $33,551 was unassigned at September 30, 2020. 

Fund Financial Statements - Proprietary Funds 

Town of lVoodviHe, Mississippi maintains one proprietary fund. Proprietary funds are used to report the same 
functions as business-type activities. Totvn of VVoodville, Mississippi uses an enterprise fund (the first type of 
proprietary fund) to account for its combined \Vater, sewer, gas, and MTC operations. This enterprise fund 
reports the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

FinnHcial Analysis ofTow11 ofVVoodville, lvlississippi's Proprietary hmd 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's Enterprise Fund shows an increase in net position of $1,896,539, including a 
prior period adjustment of (534,295), which represents less than 1 % decrease from fiscal year 2019. This is 
primarily due to a substantial amount of grants received in the current year. The sewer, prison, ,vater and 
sewer departments shovved income in the current year. The unrestricted fund balance shm.ved a balance of 
$660,368 at September 30, 2020. 5131,371 was restricted for debt service and construction projects. The 
remaining amount represents Tovv'n of VVoodville, rviississippi's investment in its utility systems and equipment. 

In that financial statements of the Enterprise Fund are presented on the same basis of accounting as in both the 
government-\vide financial statements and the individual fund statements, all comments and analysis made 
under business-type activities apply to this fund. 

Fund Financial Statements - General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

There ivere no major differences behveen the original budget and the final budget 
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Revenues were sufficiently budgeted by 521,915 or 2.3%. Actual expenditures showed a positive variance of 
$89,221 or 7.8% against budgeted expenditure amounts. The final budget and the actual results sho\v a positive 
variance of $111,136. 

Government-Wide - Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

The total investment in net capital assets as of September 30, 2020, is 57,235,735. 

New major capital assets purchased, constructed, or put in service fn fiscal year 2020 are: 

L $1,447,453 in water and sewer utility improvements were incurred during the year. 

2. A lawn mower and radio were purchased for a total of $4,357. 

Current Finm1cial Factors 

Revenues are expected to remain level, while expenditures are expected to rise. 

The ability of utility operntions lo continue to supplement the ever-increasing costs of general operations of 
Town of Woodville, Mississippi is doubtful. 

Requests for lufor111atio11 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overvievv of To\vn of Woodville, Mississippi of 
VVoodville's finances for aII with an interest in the government's operations, Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to Delaine 
Adams, Town Clerk, Post Office Box 605, Woodville, Mississippi 39669. 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Govern men ta I 
Activities 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted s 45,158 
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles 32,089 
Internal balances 69,904 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 73,017 
Capital assets, net 1,785,364 

Total assets s 2,005,532 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES - PENSIONS s 131,040 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts, salaries, and other payables s 180,702 
Payable from restricted assets 
Bonds and notes payable, due within one year 63,001 
Compensated absences 83,118 
Internal balances 
Bonds and notes payable 459,228 
Net pension liability 2,264,984 

Total liabilities s 3,051,033 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, PENSIONS s 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets s 1,263,135 
Restricted for: 
Capital projects s 
Debt service 
Operations and maintence 

Total restricted net position s 

Unrestricted s (2,177,596) 

Total net position s (91,l,.161) 

$ 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

5 

s 

s 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 

Business-
Type 

Activities 

317,859 

753,901 
5,450,371 

6,522,131 

69,511 
108,131 

76,652 
32,476 
69,904 

2,154,103 

2,510,777 

3,219,616 

531,547 
125,287 

97,067 
753,901 

37,837 

4,011,354 

9 

STATEMENT A 

Total 

s 45,158 
349,948 

69,904 
826,918 

7,235,735 

s 8,527,663 

5 131,040 

s 250,213 
108,131 
139,653 
115,594 

69,904 
2,613,331 
2,264,984 

s 5,561,810 

s 

s 4,482,751 

s 531,547 
125,287 

97,067 
s 753,901 

s (2,139,759) 

s 3,096,893 



~·;ovEI~NME!\l'TJ\L .i\J2"pyn,·1.Es 
General g:overnmt.'11! 
Publ!C s,1fc,ty 

Stn't'ts 

Sanitatron 
c,,n,e!erv 

!nten1s! un !ong-terni deb! 

Total govcrnmPnt,1! activities 

BlJ$.I~FS.,S-:"1)'_1'I_'. i\.C:::rJYJTJ.ES 
iv,illcr 

Sewer 

Cas 

MTC 
lnten•sl nn long-term debt 

T1i!a! busi1H'StHypc 

,11.'!iVi!il'S 

Tot,1! 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

', 

s 

123,{J.1(1 

53h,b35 
25.1,7b7 
un,887 
-17,809 

320,9ffl 

2.10/ill5 

-467,1-;.HI 
67)U10 

l,637 

Genc1-.1 ! n.'vt'mies: 

s 

s 

s 
s 

Charges 

for 
Services 

J.1,1::n 

rn2,.rn1 

-nR,256 

2-15,501 

·l81,5S-1 
9.1,118 

!,238,631 

l,375,2·1'/ 

1\d v,dorcm and franchise taxes 
Licenses and p1:Tmits 

Intergovernmental revenues 
Investment e,nnings 

Other genera! rev,.•m1es 
Transfers 

Pro_g_rnm Revenues 

s 

s 

s 

s 
s 

Oper<1ting 

Grants aml 
Contri­

butions 

Tot,1[ general revenues and transfers 

( hange in 1wt position 

Net pn.sitinn beginning 
Prior period adjustment 

Nd positiPn - beginning, as restated 

Net position ending 

s 

$ 

s 

s 
s 

C-ipi!al 
Grants and 

Contri­
butions 

.rn-;,1n 

-116 . .JlJ 

416,313 

Nt:t 
{Expt'l1St:s)/ 

Revenues 

s (123,0·19) 
(322,302) 
(25:1,707) 

s 

5 

s 
s 

(HO,!) 

(,17,8119) 

(978,!0.1) 

')7,817 

·B 1,1'."rl 
13,91-1 
23,-t58 

(U,37) 

566,683 

H1l,620J 

See accompnnying nolPs lo the basic financial slale1m.>nts. 

5 

s 

s 

s 
5 

s 

s 

s 
s 

s 
$ 

Nt:l (Expenses), 
Revenues, and Chang_es 

Govern- !lusilwss-
Hll'fllil! 

Activities 

(125,().19) 
(522,502) 

(253,767) 
(JAO,l) 

('17,8119) 

(978,}(U) 

(978,303) 

322,3-!1 

558 

345,623 

166 
148,059 
165,000 

981,7-17 

3,.l-14 

(917,905) 

(917,9051 

{9HA61) 

s 

s 

s 

s 
s 

s 

TypP 
Activi!ics 

97,817 
.n1,i::n 

11,9H 
25,.!58 

( !,{):i7) 

5fi6,68.1 

566,683 

1,190 

42,021 

(165,000) 

$ {121,489) 

3-1,29.'.l 

s 

STATEMENTB 

s 

$ 

$ 

s 
$ 

s 

Total 

{125,0-19} 
(522,502) 

(253,767) 
(1,10,1) 

(,17,809) 

(27,772) 

{978,~0l) 

97,817 

·Ul;131 

L\9H 
23,.J:58 

f!_._0}7) 

566,61B 

(411,620) 

322,J"n 

558 
3•l5,62J 

1,656 

190,080 

S 860,238 

34,193 

$ 2,6·18,25:'i 

~ 

0 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Major Funds 
Other 

General Governmental 
Fund Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents s 38,057 s 7,101 
Receivables (net of allo\vances 
for uncollectibles) 32,089 
Due from other funds 4,384 103,743 
Restricted assets 
Other cash deposits 73,017 

Total assets s 147,547 s 110,844 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable s . 49,090 s 103,743 
Accrued liabilities 27,869 
Due to other funds 31,122 7,101 

Total liabilities $ 108,081 s 110,844 

Fund balance: 
Assigned s 73,017 s 
Unassigned (33,551) 

Total fund balance s s 

Total liabilities and fund balance s 147,547 s 110,844 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

11 
STATEMENTC 

Total 
Governn1entaI 

Funds 

s 45,158 

32,089 
108,127 

73,017 

$ 258,391 

s 152,833 
27,869 
38,223 

s 218,925 

s 73,017 
(33,551) 

5 39A66 

s 258,391 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

12 
STATEMENTD 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because: 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Statement C) 

Net capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 
The cost of the assets is 52,924,645, and the accumulated depreciation 
is 51,139,281. 

Deferred outflows and inflmvs are not financial resources or currently 
payable. 

Deferred outflows 
Deferred inflows 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental 
funds. Long-term liabilities at year end consist of: 
Bonds payable 
Notes payable 
Compensated absences (sick pay and vacations) 
Net pension liability 

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Statement A} 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 

s 39,466 

1,785,364 

131,040 

(378,500) 
(143,729) 

(83,118) 
(2,264,984) 

(914,461) 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

13 
STATEMENT E 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Major Punds 
Other Total 

Genernl Governmental Governmental 
Fund funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem and franchise taxes $ 322,341 s s 322,341 
Licenses and permits 558 558 
Intergovernmental revenues 345,623 345,623 
Charges for services 102,482 102,482 
Fines 34,132 34,132 
Interest 166 166 
Other revenues and grants 148,061 148,061 

Total revenues s 953,363 s s 953,363 

EXPENDITURES 
General government s 142,478 5 s 142,478 
Public safety 525,890 525,890 
Streets 230,985 230,985 
Sanitation 103,886 103,886 
Cemetery 47,763 47,763 
Debt service: 
Principal 57,311 57,311 
Interest 27,772 27,772 

Total expenditures s 1,051,002 s 85,083 s J,136,085 

Revenues under expenditures s (97,639) s (85,083) s (182,722) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers - in 5 165,000 5 85,083 s 250,083 
Transfers - out (85,083) (85,083) 

Total other financing sources (uses) s 79,917 s 85,083 s 165,000 

Net change in fund 
balances s (17,722) s s (17,722) 

Fund balances - beginning 57,188 57,188 

Fund balances - ending s 39,166 s s 39,466 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

RECONCILIATION OF THE ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 

Net Change in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds, Statement E 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement 
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays 
the current period, 

of 
as 
in 

ln the statement of activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences (sick pny and 
vacations) - are measured by the amounts earned during the year. fn the governmental funds, 
however, expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used 
(essentially, the amounts actuaI!y paid). This year, vacation and sick leave \-Vas adjusted 
to actual liability by: 

Net pension expense is reported in governmental funds as expenditures as they are paid; 
however, in the statement of activities, the net position expense is reported according to 
estimates required by GASB Statement 68" This is the amount that the pension estimate exceeds 
the pension expenses paid in the current year. 

The issuance of long-term debt (notes payable and capital leases) provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds, Neither transaction, 
however, has any effect on net i!Ssets. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the 
treatment of long-term debL 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities, Stutement B 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stcttements. 
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s (17,722) 

(62,394) 

(8,357) 

34,606 

57,311 

s 3,444 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MlSSISSIPPl 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 
Cash 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 
Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted asset<;: 

Cash reserved for revenue bonds 
Cash reserved for construction projects 
Cash reserved for customer meter deposits 

Total restricted assets 

Fixed assets: 
Distribution systems 
Accumulated deprecintion 

Fixed assets, net of accumulated depredation 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities (payable frmn current assets): 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued interest payable 
Due to other funds 
Bonds and notes payable, due within one year 

Total current liabilities (payable from current assets) 

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assels): 
Customer deposits payable 

Totnl current liabilities (paynblc from restricted assels) 

Long-term liabilities: 
Compensated absences 
Bonds and notes payable 

Total long-term linbilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in rnpita! assets 
Restricted for: 
Debt service 
Deposits related to construction projects 
Deposits for operations and maintenance 

Uruestrtcted 
Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

See accompanying notes to the busic financial statements, 

$ 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

$ 

5 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 
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Enterprise Fund 

317,859 
317,859 

125,287 
531,547 

97,067 
753,901 

9,220,633 
(3,770,262) 
5,450,371 

6,522,131 

54,438 
13,282 

J,791 
69,904 
76,652 

216,067 

108,131 
108,131 

32,476 
2,15,!,103 
2,186,579 

3,219,616 

125,287 
531,547 

97,067 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

16 
STATEMENTH 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPR!ET ARY FUNDS 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services: 

\iVater sales 
Se\Ver charges 
Gas sales 
MTC revenues 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 
Purchase of utilities provided 
Materials and supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation 
Utilities and telephone 
Insurance 
Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income, net 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest earnings 
Other income 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses} 

Net income before contributions and transfers 

Capital grants and contributions 
Transfers out 

Change in net position 

rotal net position - beginning, as previously reported 
Prior period adjustments 

Total net position - beginning, as restated 

Total net position - ending 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

Enterprise Fund 

s 418,256 
245,503 
481,554 

93,318 

s 1,238,631 

s 331,603 
170,853 

85,700 
20,559 

165,408 
91,194 
26,225 

195,083 

s 1,086,625 

$ 152,006 

s l,490 
42,023 
(1,638) 

$ 

s 193,881 

416,313 
(165,000) 

s 445,194 

s 3,531,865 
34,295 

5 3,566,160 

s 4,011,354 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, M!SS!SS!PP! 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Cash received from customers 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees for services 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities 
Uses by other expenses 
Operating transfers - out 

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Capital grants and contributions 
Lonn proceeds 
Principal paid on bonds and notes 
Interest paid on bonds 
Construction of water and sewer system improvements 

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
fnterest on temporary investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
Operating income 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided by Operating 
Activities 
Depreciation 
Provision for bad debts 
Change in assets and liabilities: 
(lnrrease) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable 
Increase (decrease} in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Customer deposits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See acco1T1panying notes to the busic fin,mclal statements, 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

5 

s 
s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 
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Enterprise Fund 

1,276,156 
(643,954) 
(394,013) 
238,189 

42,023 
(152,007) 
(109,984) 

416,313 
1,451,345 

(61,092) 
(1,638) 

(1,447,453) 
357,475 

1,490 
1,490 

487,170 

266,731 

753,901 

152,006 

165,408 
(14,413) 

27,406 

(54,340) 
(47,997) 
10,119 
86,183 

238,189 



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 



INTRODUCTION 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

18 

Tmvn of Woodville, Mississippi \Vas incorporated on l'vlarch 5, 1878, Town of \Voodville, Mississippi operates under 
the Mayor/Board of Aldenrien form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: 
public safety (police and fire); streets; sanitntion; health and social services; culture and recreation; public 
improvements; planning and zoning; provision for water, sewer, and gns utilities services; and general services. 

The accounting and reporting policies of Tmvn of \Voodvillc, Mississippi conforn1 to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, as applicable to governments. 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, 'J71e Reporting E11Wy, established criteria for 
determining the governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting 
entity, Under provisions of this statement, the municipality is considered a primary government since it is n special 
purpose government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscaily independent of 
other state or local governments, As used in GASB Stiitement 14, fiscaHy independent means that the municipality 
may, without the approval or consent o( another governmental entity, determine or modify its mvn budget, levy its 
mvn taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Government~Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (Le,, the Stntement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) 
report information on all of the nonfiduciury activities of the government. For the most part, the effect of 
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intcrgovcrnrncntal revenues, are reported separately from business~type activities, \,vhich 
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The Stutement of Activities demonstrates the degree 
to vvhich the direct expenses of a given function or segment nrc offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are 
lhose that are clearly identifiable \Vith a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 
given function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly lnduded among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements arc provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as sepnrate cotumns in the fund financial 
statements. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and FinandaI Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded i..vhen a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property 
taxes are recognized as revenues in the yem for vvhlc:h the.y are levied. Grnnts and simiiar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available ·when they are collectible \.vithin the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are coUeded within 60 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded vvhen a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as \Veil as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims 
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due, 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. 
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the 
government. 

The municipality reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General F1111d is the municipality's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund, 

The municipality reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The E11te1prisc Fund is used to account for the provision of water, se,ver, and gas utiHties, as \VelI as 
services to Management and Training Corporation, All activities necessary to provide such services are 
accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to 1 administrntion 1 operations, rnaintenance, 
financing, and related debt service and bi!Hng and coliection, 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally 
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Governments also have the option of follmving subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type 
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same !imitation. The government has elected not to follow 
subsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-1,,vide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and other charges behveen the 
government's enterprise operations. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, 
or privileges provided; (2} operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likevvise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating Hems. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection vvith a proprietary fund's principal on-going operations. Operating expenses for enterprise 
funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. AII 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

\Vhen both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the municipality's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed, 

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The municipality's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short-term investments (certificates of deposit} with original maturities of six months or less from the date 
of acquisition. Town of Woodville, Mississippi deposits funds in financial institutions selected by the Board 
of Aldermen in accordance with state statutes, 

There are various restrictions on these deposits imposed by statutes. These restrictions are summarized 
belovv: 

All deposits with financial institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), or any 
successors to such insurance corporations, must be co!lateralized in an amount equal to 105% of the 
uninsured amount (See Note 3) 

D. Investments 

Tovvn of Woodville, fvlississippi is allov,,.ed by statute to invest excess funds in any bonds or other direct 
obligations of the United States of America or the State of fvlississippi, or of any county or municipality of 
this state when such county or municipal bonds have been properly approved; or interest-bearing time 
certificates of deposit or interest-bearing accounts with any financial institution approved for the deposit of 
state funds. Town of Woodville, Mississippi currently only invests excess funds in certificates of deposit, or 
interest-bearing deposits, 

E. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borro1,.ving arrangements outstanding o.t the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (e.g,, the current portion of interfund 
loans) or "advances to/from other funds" the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). Any residual 
balances outstanding behveen the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances," 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

E. Receivables and Payables (continued) 
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All trade and property tax receivables arc shown net of an allowance for uncoliectible accounts. Uncoilectible 
amounts due for ad valorem taxes and customers' utility receivables are recognized through the establishment of 
an allowance account at the time information becomes available which would indicate the uncollectibility of the 
particular receivable. 

Ad valorem taxes are not considered to be avuilable resources of the fiscal year to which they apply and are, 
therefore, not accrued at the end of the fiscal year. 

F. Inventories 

For both govermnental and proprietary funds, purchase of various operating supplies are regarded us 
expenditures or expenses at the time purchased, and inventories of such supplies (if any) are not recorded as 
assets at the close of the fiscal year. For the year ending September 30, 2020, these amounts were considered to be 
immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

G. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets (internally and externally imposed) were appiicnble to the following at September 30, 2020: 

Consumer deposits & granl,; 
Deposits related to bonded debt 
Fire rebate savings 
Cemetery funds 
Capital projects 
Future Growth Fund 
Sidewalk repair 

Totals 

H. Capital Assets 

General Fund 
s 

12,206 
28,525 

32,214 

Utilitv Fund 
s 622,530 s 622,531) 

125,287 125,287 
12.206 
28,525 

6,084 6.084 
32,214 

Capitul assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmcntai or business-type activities columns in 
the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated cost if 
historical cost is not available. Donnted assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at 
the date of donation, The municipality maintains a threshold level of 55,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets 
used in the governmental funds. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset 
lives are not capitalized, 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are as construction in progress and are depreciated 
upon completion of the project Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type 
activities is induded as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. There \Vas no capitalized interest 
cost during the current fiscal year, 
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All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful 
lives: 

Description 
Governmental activities: 

Land improvements 
Buildings 
Vehicles 
Machinery and equipment 

Business-type activities/Enterprise Fund: 
Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and equipment 
Vehicles 

I. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

Estimated Lives 

20 years 
40 years 
5 years 
3 - 10 years 

40 years 
20 - 50 years 
3 - 10 years 
5 years 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Financial Position vvill sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflovvs of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so \ViU not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 

Deferred outflows related to pensions 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Financial Position \Vil! sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflo,vs of resources. This separate financial statement clement, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future pcriod(s) and so wm not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

Deferred inflows related to pensions 

See Note 12 for further details. 

J. Compensated Absences 

Vested or accumulated annu:1! leave that is expected to be liquidated \Vith expendable available financial 
resources is reported as an expendil-ure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that \.Vill pay it. 
Amounts of vested or accumulated annual leave that are not expected to be liquidated i-vith expendable 
available financial resources are reported as a long-term debt No expenditure is reported for these 
amounts. Vested or accumulated annual leave of the Enterprise Fund is recorded as an expense and 
liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees, In accordance with the provisions of GASB 
Statement 16 (GASB Cod. Sec. C60), Acco1111ti11g Com11cnsated l\/Jsc11ccs, no liability is recorded for 
nonvesting a.c:cumu]ating rights to receive sick-pay benefits. 
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In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations nre reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond 
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related 
debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face nmount of the debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

L. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/ deductions from PERS fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, the 
benefit payments (induding refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance \Vith the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

M. Equity Classification 

During the current fiscal year, Town of \Voodville, Mississippi implemented the provisions of GASB 
Statement 63, Fitwndal Reporting of D:fcrrcd Outflows of Reso11rccs, D~fared Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position. GASE Statement 63 provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows and deferred 
inflows of resources as a consumption of net position applicable to a future reporting period and an 
acquisition of net position applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. 

Furthermore, GASB Statement 63 requires equity to be classified as net position and displayed in three 
components: (1) net investment in capital assets-consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrm,dngs that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets; (2) restricted net 
position-consists of net position \Vith constraints placed on the use either by (a) external groups such as 
creditors, grantors, contributions, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation; and (3) unrestricted net position-all other net position 
that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

The government-Vv"ide statement of net position reports J,J.o,7c 

restricted by enabling legislation. 
of restricted net position, all of which is 
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Beginning with fiscal year 2012, Town of Woodville, Mississippi implemented GASB Statement 54, F1111d 
Bnla11ce Reporting and Gouen1111e11tal Fund ]~1J!7C Dcfi1Iitio11s. This Statement provides more clearly defined 
fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund 
balance more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending 
constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 

• Nonspendabie fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or are 
required to be maintained intact; 

• Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, 
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling 
legislation; 

• Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its 
highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for 
any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the 
constraint; 

• Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be 
expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the 
authority; 

• Unassigned fund balance - amounts that ore available for any purpose; positive a.mounts are reported 
only in the general furn.l 

The Board of Aldermen establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of an 
ordinance or resolution< This is typically done through adoption and amend1nent of the budget J\ fund 
balance commihnent is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commihnent of the 
fund (such as for special incentives), Assigned fund balance is established by the Board of Aldermen 
through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purposes (such as the purchase of 
fixed assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes), 

N, Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity ivith accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of Arnerica requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ fron1 those estimates. 
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Town of \Voodville1 Mississippi folimvs these procedures establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

1. Prior to September 1, the Town Clerk prepares a proposed operating budget and submits it to the Mayor and 
Board of Aldermen for the fiscal year commencing October 1. 

2, A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the proposed budget is available for 
public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called, 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at Town Hall to obtain taxpayer comments. 

4. The budget, as submitted, is revievved by the iv1ayor and the Board of Aldermen. Necessary revisions are made. 
The budget is approved prior to September 15. 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one depnrtment, program, or function to another or 
involving increases in expenditures resulting fronl revenues exceeding amounts estimated require the approval 
of the Board of Aldermen. The budget is revised as necessary during the year. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds, if any, are adopted on a basis consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIV A LENTS 

At September 30, 2020, the municipality has cash and cush equivalents as follmvs: 

Unrestricted: 
Demand deposits 

Totals - unrestricted accounts 

Resh·icted: 
Demand deposits 
Time deposit 

Totals - reslTicted accounts 
Totals - all accounts 

s 

Carrying 
Amount 

791,534 

s 

s 

s 

Bank 
Balance 

45158 

791,534 

rhe collateral for public entities' deposits in financial institutions is no\v held ln the name of the State Treasurer under 
a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-'105-5, Miss. Code Ann. 
(1972)< Under this program, the entities' funds are protected through a collaternl pool administered by the State 
Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against those 
deposits. In the event of a failure of a financial institution, securities pledged by that institution \vould be iiquidated 

the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, 
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Real and personal property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are 
levied in September and payable on or before February L These taxes and public utilities tax are collected by Tmvn of 
Woodville, Mississippi, Auto and mobile home property taxes are collected and remitted to Town of \Voodville, 
Mississippi by the Wilkinson County tax collector. The millage rate for Town of Woodville, Mississippi for January 
through December 2020, tvas 55,62 mills, broken dmvn as foIIows: 

General Fund 55,62 mills 

Restrictions associated with property tax levies are established by state law \Vhich provides that the tax levy for 
general purposes shall produce no more than 110% of the amount which resulted from those levies' assessments of 
the previous year. 

The General Fund tax levy did not result in collections in excess of the 11W'.0 limit in the current year. Excess funds 
from the prior year were considered in establishing the millage for the current year. 

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES 

Receivables as of year~end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

Receivables: 
Customer accounts 
Due from other governments 
Due from other agencies 

Gross receivables 
Less alIO\vance for uncollectibles 

Net total receivables 

s 16,089 
14,511 

s 40,600 
/8 511) 

Enterprise 

s 276,993 

$ 

s 

s 

Total 

393,082 
24,511 

466,304 

Uncollectible amounts due for customers' utility receivables are recognized as bad debts through the establishment of 
an allowance account at the time information becomes avnilable which would indicate the uncollectibility of the 
receivable. 

NOTE6- INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

The following is a summary of due from.jto other funds: 

General fund 
Enterprise fund 
Agency funds: 

Payroll clearing 
Accounts payable clearing 

Total all funds 

5 4,384 s 31,122 
69,904 

7,101 
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Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, is as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance 

9/30/2019 Increases Decreases 
Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land s 424,757 s s 
Total capital assets, not being 

depreciated s 424,757 s s 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings s 1,209,447 s s 
tviachinery and equipment 220,270 4,357 
Vehicles 512,732 
Other improvements 553,082 

Total capital assets being depreciated s 2,495,531 s 4,357 s 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings s (190,952) s (24,064) s 
t'vlachincry and equipment (188,152) (6,287) 
Vehicles (431,974) (8,805) 
Other improvements 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets being 

depreciated,. net s 1,423,001 s (62,394) s 
Governmental activities capital assets, net s s (62,394) $ 

Busincss-TyQe Activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress 5 766,848 s s 
Total capital nssets, not being 

depreciated s s 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Distribution systems s 6,745,672 s s 
i'viachinery, equipment, and vehicles 260,660 

Total capital assets being depreciated s s s 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Distribution systems s (3,386,708) s (149,130) s 
\iachinery, equipment, and vehicles (218,146) 

Totnl accumulated depreciution s (3,604,854) 
Tota! capital assels being 

depreciated, net s s 

activities c:apita! assets, net s s 
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Ending 
Balance 

9/30/2020 

s 424,757 

s 424,757 

s 1,209,447 
224,627 
512,732 
553,082 

s 2,499,888 

s (215,016) 
(194,439) 
(-l-!2,779) 
(287,047) 

s (1,139,281) 

s 1,360,607 

s 

s 2,214,301 

s 2,214,301 

s 6,745,672 
260,660 

s 

s (3,535,838) 
(234,424) 

s (3,770,262) 

s 

s 
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Depreciation expense related to governmental activities of 566,751 for the year ended September 30, 2020, was 
charged to the following governmental functions: 

General government 
Public safety 
Streets 
Cemetery 

Total 

$ 3,336 
32,917 
29,124 

Depreciation expense related to the Enterprise Fund for the year ended September 30, 2020, was 5165,408. 

NOTE 8 - CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 

The municipality has active construction projects as of September 30, 2020. At year end, the commitments with 
contractors are as follo\vs: 

Spent 
To Date 

RUS loan - water system project S 2,214,301 

NOTE 9 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Interfund transfers during the year ended September 30, 2020, were as follows; 

$ 

Remaining 
Commitment 

• $165,000 \Vas transferred from the Enterprise Fund to the GenernI Fund to cover expenses of government 
activities. 

• $85,083 was transferred from the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund to cover principal and interest 
payments due. 

NOTE 10 - ACCOUNTS, SALARIES, AND OTHER PAY ABLES 

The payables of $250,213 at September 30, 2020, are as follows: 

Accounts payable - trade 
Accrued salaries, wages, and payroll taxes 
Other accrued liabilities 

Totals 

Governmental 

s 152,833 
27,869 

Business-Type 

s 54;!38 
13,282 

5 207,271 
41,151 
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Enterprise 
Generul Obligation Fund 

Bond, Notes 
Bonds Capital Leases 

Notes Pavable Pav able 

Balances, September 30, 2019 s 422,300 s 157,239 s 579,539 s 871,637 

Additions 1,512,850 

Reductions (43,800) (13,510) (57,310) (119,437) 

Prior period adjustment , (34,295) , 

Balances, September 30, 2020 s 378,500 s 143,729 s 522,229 s 2,230,755 

Less: current portion (48,800) (14,201) (63,001) (76,652) 

Long-term portion $ ...... ... 129~528 ~ , 2,.L'i,:l,1!11 

Long-term debt as of September 30, 2020, is comprised of the following: 

General Obligation 

General obligation bonds payable to finance a portion of the ne,v municipal building 
in the amount of $460,500, doted February 6, 2008, payable in annual instaHments of 
principal and interest commencing on February 6, 2009, and maturing 
February 6, 2028, ,vith an interest rate of 4.375%. 

General obligation note payable to Concordia Bank & Trust to finance a portion of 
the new municipal building in the amount of $222,884, dated October 24, 2013, 
payable in monthly installments of principal and interest in the amount of $1,706.05 
and maturing on December 24, 2023, vvith an interest rate of 4.99%. 

2010 General Obligation Street Bonds payable to finance street improvements in the 
amount of $325,000, dated July 6, 2010, payable in annual installments of principal 
and interest commencing on August 1, 2011, and maturing August 1, 2025, with an 
interest rate of 5%_ 

Total general obligation debt 

Less: current portion 

Long-term portion 

s 
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Totals 

s 1,451,176 

1,512,850 

(176,747) 

(34,295) 

s 2,752,984 

(139,653) 

s----4'.ii,tl,3.ll 

s 233,500 

143,729 

522,229 
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Enterprise Fund 

USDA to finance the construction of \Vater system improvements in the amount of 
51,451,341, dated December 11, 2019, and payable thereafter in installments of 
principal and interest in the amount of 562,920, maturing on December 11, 2053< 

Combined Water and Sewer Bond payable to finance the construction of \Valer and 
sewer system improvements in the amount of $715,600, dated November 14, 2001, 
with interest only on November 14, 2002 and November 14, 2003, and payable 
thereafter in annual installments of principal and interest in the amount of $42,041, 
maturing on November 14, 2036, with an interest rnte of 4.5%. 

Note payable to Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality to finance the 
construction and improvement of the MTC's wastewater system to comply with the 
enforceable requirements of the Clean Water Act, dated January 29, 2013, payable in 
monthly installments of $1,124.68, with an interest rate of 1.75% and maturing 
December 2032. 

Note payable to Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality to finance the 
construction and improvement of Town of \Noodville, Mississippi's ,.vastewater 
system to comply ·with the enforceable requirements of the Clean \'Valer Act, dated 
May 2015, payable in monthly instailmcnts of 51,061.81, with an interest rate of 1.75% 
and maturing March 2033. 

Capital lease payable to BancorpSouth for the lease of a backhoe in the amount of 
$82,394, dated November 19, 2015, payable in 60 monthly installments of 51,460, with 
an interest rate of 2.44 % . 

Total enterprise fund debt 

Less: current portion 

Long-term portion 
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5 1,451,341 

483,376 

148,711 

142,962 

s 2,230,755 
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The annual requirements to amortize all outstanding debt as of September 30, 2020, including interest payments 
are as follmvs: 

Fiscal Gencrnl Obligation Enter11ris0 Fund 
Year Ending Bonds and Notes Pavable 

September 30 Interest 
2021 s 63,001 s 23,951 s 76,652 s 58,935 $ 222,539 
2022 65,926 20,887 74,298 56,908 218,019 
2023 67,888 17,737 76,371 54,835 216,831 
2024 154,700 11,237 78,514 52,691 297,142 
2025 64,700 7,306 50,478 203,211 

2026-2030 106,014 8,641 216,525 770,683 
2031-2035 150,467 587,061 
2036-2040 41 843 1 009 938 

Totals i ,,.,, '?22229 ~- 0B-2,ii82 $ __ 3,525A24 

Retirement of general obligation debt is to be made by annual transfers of General Fund revenue in the amounts 
necessary to retire principal and interest currently due, There are a number of limitations and restrictions 
contained in the various bond indentures. Town of \Noodville, Mississippi is in compliance with all significant 
limitations and restrictions. The following is n schedule of limitations of the indebtedness of Town of 
Woodville, Mississippi at September 30, 2020: 

Assessed valuation for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020 
Percent limitation 
Authorized debt limit 
Present debt service to 15% limitation 
Margin for additional debt 

$ 7,235,735 

The related capita] costs incurred to date are properly included in the repair and maintenance accounts for 
iv1TC-related projects and capital asset accounts for Town of \Voodville, ivlississippi's project \Vhen necessary in 
the fixed asset footnote in Note 7. 

NOTE 12 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Pia/! Descriptio11 - Town of Woodville, Mississippi contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement System of 
Mississippi (PERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined, benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement 
and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, 
Benefit provisions are established by state lmv and may be amended only by the State of i'vlississlppi Legislature. 
PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employees' Retirement System, PERS 
Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, Mississippi 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 
1-800-444-PERS. 
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Funding Policy - PERS members are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary, and Town of 
VVoodvilie, Mississippi is required to contribute at an actuaria!Iy determined rnte. The employer contribution 
rate is 17.40% for the current fiscal year for annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of PERS 
members are established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature, 

Benefits Provided - Membership in PERS is a condition of employment granted upon hiring for qualifying 
employees and officials of the State of Mississippi, state universities, community and junior colleges, and 
teachers and employees of the public school districts, For those persons employed by political subdivisions and 
instrumentalities of the State of Mississippi, membership is contingent upon approval of the entity's 
participation in PERS by the PERS' Board of Trustees, If approved, membership for the entity's employees is a 
condition of employment, and eligibitity is granted to those who qualify upon hiring. Participating members 
who are vested and retire at or after age 60 or those vvho retire regardless of age \Vilh at least 30 years of 
creditable service (25 years of creditable service for employees who became members of PERS before 
July 1, 2011) are entitled, upon application, to an annual retirement allowance payable monthly for life in an 
amount equal to 2% of their average compensation for each year of creditable service up to and including 30 

years (25 years for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), plus 25% for each additional year 
of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in the benefit for each year of creditable service below 30 years 
or the number of years in age that the member is belmv 65, whichever is less. Average compensation is the 
average of the employee's earnings during the four highest compensated years of creditable service. Benefits 
vest upon completion of eight years of membership service (four years of membership service for those who 
became members of PERS before July 1, 2007), PERS also provides certain death and disability benefits, A Cost­
of-Living Adjustment (COLA) payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiaries, The COLA is equal to 3% 
of the annual retirement aIIowance for each fuH fiscal year of retirement up to the year in which the retired 
member reaches age 60 (55 for those who became members of PERS before July l, 2011), with 3% compounded 
for each fiscal year thereafter, Pian provisions are established and may be amended only by the State of 
Mississippi Legislature, 

Contributions - PERS members are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary, and To,vn of 
VVoodville, Mississippi is required to contribute at an actuarialiy determined rate. The employer's rate as of 
September 30, 2020, was 17A0% of annual covered payrolL The contribution requirements of PERS members 
and employers arc established and may be amended only by the State of fv1ississlppi Legislature. Town of 
Woodville, tv1ississippi's contributions to PERS for the years ending September 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018, were 
$132,899, Sl32,946, and $126,490, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each yeaL 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At September 30, 2020, Town of Woodville, Mississippi reported a of $2,264,984 for its proportionate 
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 301 2020, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability ·was detennined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date. To,vn of \Voodville1 i\!1ississippi's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
Town of Woodville, Mississippi's long-term share of contribution to the pension plan relative to projected 
contributions of all participating entitles, actuariaHy determined. At June 30, 2020, Tovvn of \Voodville, 
Mississippi's proportion was 0'°117%, 
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For the year ended June 30, 2020, Town of Woodville, Mississippi recognized pension expense of $242,469, At 
September 30, 2020, Town of Woodville, Mississippi reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the follovving sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Changes of assumptions 
Changes in proportion and differences behvecn the 
Town's contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 

T O\Vn of VVood ville, Mississippi's contributions 
subseguent to the measurement date 

Total 

s 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

14,289 

74,430 
9,301 

s 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

5131,040 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town of \Voodville, 
Mississippi's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction to the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflmvs of resources and deferred 
inflmvs of resources related to pensions \Vill be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2021 $ 27,349 
2022 s 27,349 
2023 s 24,714 
2024 $ 18,607 
2025 s 
Thereafter s 

Actuarial Ass11111phons - !"he total pension liability as of June 30, 2020, \Yas determined by 
prepared as of June 30, 2019, The fo!Iovving actuarial assu111ptions are applied to all 
measurement: 

Inflation 2.75% 

Salary increases 3,00-18.25%, including inffation 

an actuarial valuation 
included in the 

Investment rate of return 7.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the Pub SJ-l-2010(8) Retiree Table \Yith the foIImving adjustments: 

For males, 112% of males rates from ages 18 to 75 srnled dotvn to 105'\ for ages 80 to 119 For females, 85~i~ of the 
females rates from ages 18 to 65 scaled up to 102% for ages 75 to -i19. !Vlortality rates \Yill be generationally 
using the MP-2019 projection scale to account for future improvements in life 0,nc,-tanrv 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period July L 2014 to June 30, 2018, The experience is dated April 2, 2019, 
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NOTE 12 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected nominal 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed for each major 
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation, 
The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Domestic equity 
International equity 
Global equity 
Fixed income 
Real estate 
Private equity 
Cash 

Total 

Target AIIocation 

")'JO 
--/() 

12?-0 
20% 
10% 
8% 

Long-Term Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

4.90% 
4.75% 
5.00% 
050% 
4.00% 
6.25% 
0.00% 

D{scou/lt Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability tvas 7.75%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions wilI be made at the current 
contribution rate and that employer contributions v,dll be made at rates equal to the difference between 
actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position v,:as projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments vvas applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sc11sr'Hvity to Changes in Discount Rate - The follo\ving presents Tmvn of Woodville, Ivlississippi's proportionate 
share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.75'.'.-0 1 as well as what Tmvn of \1VoodviHe, 
.tv1ississippi's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it ,vere calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.75%) than the current rate: 

Town's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability s 

1 % Decrease 

2,931,744 s 

Current 
Discount Rate 

2,264,984 s 

1 9-0 Increase 

1,714,640 

Pc11sia1t Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed infornrntion about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued PERS financial report. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

NOTE 13 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 

Intergovernmental revenues for the year ended September 30, 2020, consisted of the following: 

State: 
Sales tax allocation 
Payment in lieu of taxes 
Genera] municipal aid 
Gasoline tax 
Liquor privilege tax 
Homestead exemption reimbursement 
Other 

Total intergovernmental revenues 

s 

General 
Fund 

300,912 
14,294 

547 
3,357 

900 
10,567 
15 046 

NOTE 14 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUND 

Enterprise 
Fund 

s 

35 

Totals 

s 300,912 
14,294 

547 
3,357 

900 
10,567 
15 046 

The Enterprise Fund operated by Town of VVoodvillc, Mississippi provides water, sewer, and gas utility 
services. The follovving is a summary of disclosures required by the N11tio1111I Council on Governmental Accou11ti11g 
iH llltcrprctatio11 2, Segment Iifomrntio11 far Enterprise FU11ds: 

Operating revenues 
Operating expenses 
Purchase of utilities 
Depreciation 

Operating income 

Interest income 
Other revenues 
Capital grants 
Interest expense 
Operating transfers, net 

Change in net position 

s 
\Vater 

418,256 $ 

(257,145) 
245,503 S 

(144,976) 
481,554 $ 

(318,242) 
(136,616) 

MTC 
93,318 $ 

(64,237) 
1,238,631 
(784,600) 
(136,616) 

___ _..\.,-,2:!.) --~r~s~5,~70~9) __ _J_!e=c=/----'="""i--~(~]~65~,~40=8} 

s 

s 

152,007 

1,490 
42,021 

416,313 
(1,637} 

(165,000) 
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NOTE IS-ACCUMULATED UNPAID ANNUAL LEAVE AND SICK PAY 
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Employees of Tmvn of \Voodviile, Mississippi earn annual and sick leave as designated in the personnel policies 
adopted by Town of Woodville, Mississippi. Town of Woodville, Mississippi is responsible for up to 15 days of 
annual leave for each employee depending on years of continuous service. Town of Woodville, Mississippi is 
responsible for up to 12 days of sick leave per year for each employee depending on years of continuous service. 
There is no maximum on the accumulation of sick leave. All unused major medical leave shall be creditable service 
for the purpose of retirement Upon termination of employment, eoch employee shall be paid for nol more than 30 
days of accumulated sick leave, 

NOTE 16 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

Town of VVoodviHe, Mississippi is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disaster. Town of VVoodville, Mississippi carries 
commercial insurance for these risks. Settled claims resulting from these insured risks have not exceeded comn1ercial 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscnl years, 

NOTE 17 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, 
principally the federal government. Any disallmved claims, including amounts already coliected, may constitute a 
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor, cannot 
be determined at this time, although Tmvn of Woodville, Mississippi expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

NOTE 18 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

!n March 2020, the V\forid Health Organization classified the COV!D-19 outbreak as a pandemic The full impact of 
the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report Management is actively monitoring the 
situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, customers, industry, and vvorkforce, Given the daily 
evolution of the COV!D-19 outbreak and the responses to curb its spread, the Tmvn is not able to estimate the effects 
of COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity for the fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2020, or through the date of this report. 

NOTE 19 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

During the fiscal year, the Tmvn made the foHovving prior period adjustment to the government-vvide and fund 
financial statements: 

1, Correct prior year adjustment that \Vrnte down the receivable from a co1nponent unit 

Net position at September 30, 2019, as 
Correct prior year adjustment to receivable from component unit 
Net position at September 30, 2020, as restated 

s 

Government-vdde 

2,613,960 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem and franchise taxes s 326,000 s 289,190 
Licenses and permits 2,500 383 
Intergovernmental 392,600 388,955 
Charges for services 100,000 102,817 
Fines 42,000 33,892 
Interest 250 153 
Miscellaneous 110,321 116,059 

Total revenues 5 973,671 s 931,449 

EXPENDITURES 
General government s 195,800 s 205,173 
Public safety: 

Police and court 509,400 507,127 
I'ire 30,911 19,517 

Streets 342,960 253,755 
Sanitation 85,000 103,887 
Cemetery 61,600 50,764 

Total expenditures s 1,225,671 s 1,140,223 

Revenues over (under) expenditures s (252,000) $ (208,774) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers - in s 270,000 s 165,000 
Operating transfers - out 

Total other financing sources (uses) s 270,000 s 165,000 

Excess revenues and other sources 
under expenditures and other uses s 18,000 s (43,774) 

Fund balance - beginning of year 113,321 

Fund balance - end of year s 131,321 s 99A89 

See Independent Auditor 1s Report 
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Variance \Nith 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Actual (Negative) 

s 322,341 s 33, J 50 
558 175 

345,623 (43,332) 
102,482 (335) 

34,132 240 
166 13 

148,061 32,002 
s 953,363 $ 21,915 

s 142,478 $ 62,695 

507,729 (602) 
18,161 1,356 

230,985 22,770 
103,886 1 

47,763 3,001 
s 1,051,002 s 89,221 

$ (97,639) $ 111,136 

s 165,000 s 
(85,083) (85,083) 

s 79,917 s (85,083) 

s (17,722) s 26,053 

57,188 

s 39,466 s 26,053 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI'S PROPORTIONATE 
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

PERS: 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

Town of VVoodvillc, Mississippi's proportion of the 
net pension liability (asset) 

Tcrnm of YVoodville, :tvlississippi's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability (asset) 

Tcnvn of Woodville, Mississippi's covcred-cmplo_yee payroll 

Tmvn of \iVnodville, Mississippi's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset} as a percentage of its 
covcrcd-cmr,loycc payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 

$ 

$ 

--"" 2019--

0"012% 

2,264,984 $ 

763,787 S 

297% 

59% 

0,012% 

2,198,997 $ 

822,505 $ 

267% 

62rx1 

0.013% 

2,095,754 $ 

799,990 $ 

262% 

63% 

The amounts presl'ntcd for l'ilCh fiscal )'l'ilr were determined as nf the measurcmt:nt date of June JO of lhe year prior to the fiscal year presented. 

0,0"12% 

2,061,30! '" ,, 

787,529 $ 

2621Jtl 

61% 

0.0'12% 

2,189,763 

784,216 

279~{1 

62% 

This schedule is lo illustrate the requin;nwnt to show m/ormation for 10 years. However, GASB 68 was implemented in FYE June JO, 2015, <1ml, until a lull 10~year trend is compiled, Tuwn 
of Wnndvil!e, Mississippi has only prl'sented information for the years which information is available. 

Sec Independent Auditor's Report 
w 
00 



PERS: 
Last 10 Fiscal Years' 

Contractually required contribution 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

--- 2020 """"""""" ·--· 20.19 . -···- 2018 ....... . -···-··· 2017 -·~· 

$ 132,899 S 132,946 $ 125,998 $ 124,036 S 123,514 

Contribution in relation to the contractually required contribution --···----iD'.Lll99) ······-··-···-····11022.46 l ...... l1~2,.2.9JD ···- -·-· .1111,J~~izl _____ (123,514 l 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's covered-employee payroll s 763,787 $ 822,505 $ 799,990 $ 787,529 $ 784,216 

Contributions ilS a percentage of covered-employee pc1yro!I ]7.40% '16.16% 15.75% 15.75% 15.75% 

The amounts presented for each fiscal yl'ar were determined as of the mcasun'menl date of June 30 of the year prior lo the fiscal year presented. 

This schedull' is pre;,cnted to i!lustr<1!e the r('quirernent to shmv mformation for HJ yc'<US. However, Gt\5B 68 was imp!enwntcd in FYE June 30, 2015, and, until a full HJ-year !rend is compiled, Town 
of Woodvill,>, Mississippi has only presl'nh:d information for tlw ye<1rs which information is available. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
,.,., 
"' 
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Combining Schedule of Nonmajor Governmental Funds 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other funds 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Totat fund balances 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Fiduciary Funds 
Accounts Payable 
and Credit Card Payroll 

Clearing Clearing 
Fund Fund 

s (206) s 7,307 s 
103,743 

s 103,537 s 7,307 s 

$ 103,743 s s 
(206) 7,307 

s 103,537 s 7,307 s 

s s s 

s 103,537 s 7,307 s 

See Independent /\uditor 1s Report 
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Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Total Funds 

7,101 s 7,101 
103,743 103,743 

110,844 s 110,844 

103,743 s 103,743 
7,101 7,101 

110,844 s 110,SH 

s 

110,844 s 110,844 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Revenues under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Operating transfers - in 

Total other financing sources 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Excess revenues and other sources over expenditures 

Fund balance - beginning of year 

Fund balance - end of year 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

See Independent Auditor 1s Report. 

Debt Service 
Fund 

57,311 
27,772 

85,083 

(85,083) 

85,083 

85,083 

41 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

s 

s 

s 57,311 
27,772 

s 85,083 

s (85,083) 

s 85,083 

s 85,083 

s 

$ 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE RECONCILING ORIGINAL ADV ALOREM TAX ROLLS TO 

FUND COLLECTIONS ON 2019 ADV ALOREM TAXES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Assessed valuation 
Real property 
Personal property 
Auto and mobile home 
Public utilities 

Total at 55.62 mills 

Less: Homestead credit allowed 
Add: Prior-year collections 
Add: Additional forest distribution 
Add: Actual homestead reimbursement 

Total to be accounted for 

Credits 
Coilection allocated to: 
General Fund 

Balance represented by 
Unpaid real and personal 
Unaccounted for 

Total accounted for 

s 

Assessed 
Value 

s 4,086,081 
593,942 
833,423 
326,084 

s 5,839,530 

Homestead 
Taxes Reimbursement 

283,990 s 10,567 

·+2 

Tax 

s 227,268 
33,035 
46,355 
18,137 

$ 324,795 

(19,671) 

10,567 

s 315,691 

Totals 

s 294,557 

16,074 
5,060 

s 315,691 

Note: Ad valorem taxes on automobiles and mobile homes are collected and remitted by the VV-Hkinson County 
fax Collector. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 



General Fund 

Restricted Funds 

Concordia Bank & Trust 
Savings and checking accounts 

Cemetery funds 
Fire rebate funds 
Sidevvalk repair 
Future growth fund 

Total general fund restricted 
investments 

Enterprise Fund 

Restricted Funds 

Concordia Bank & Trust 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS - ALL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Principal 
Rate Bulnnce 

0.10% s 28,525 
o.-I0% 12,206 
0,]0% 72 
0.10% 32,214 

s 73,017 

Certificates of deposit and checking accounts: 
\Yater and sewer system 0<'10% s 34,152 
Opera ting cash - reserved for deposits O.HJ% 487,949 
\Vater improvement and capital projects 0.10% 124 
CCA reserve ll.10% 5,959 
CDBG fund OJO% 100,430 
Bond cushion fund O.IO% >±2,617 
Contingent fund 0.10':C 2"1,259 
Depreciation fund 0.10% 21,309 
Bond and interest-sinking fund OJOC;, 

Total enterprise fund restricted s 
investments 

Total investments - all funds 5 826,918 

See Tndependcnt Auditor's Report 
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Fair 
Carrying Market 

Value Value 

s 28,525 s 28,525 
12,206 12,206 

72 72 
32,214 32,214 

s 73,017 s 73,017 

s 3+,152 s 34,152 
487,949 487,949 

]2.j 124 
5,959 5,959 

100,430 100,430 
42,617 42,617 
2'!,259 21,259 
21,309 21,309 

40,102 

s 753,901 s 753,901 

s 826,918 $ 826,918 



Name 

Keshia Stewart Ford 

Russell Fry 

Earl-Dean Anthony 

William Carter 

Megan Tolliver 

Pawlawski D, Adams 

Elnora Veals 

Tanvonna Walker 

Jessie Stewart 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS FOR MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Position Insurance Companv 

Mayor Travelers Casualty & Surety 

Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety 

Alderman Travelers Casually & Surety 

Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety 

Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety 

Town Clerk \Vestern Surety Company 

Deputy Clerk Old Republic Surety Company 

Deputy Clerk Old Republic Surety Company 

Chief of Police Old Republic Surety Company 

Sec Independent Auditor's Report 

Amount 

$ 50,000 

$ 25,000 

s 25,000 

s 25,000 

s 25,000 

$ 50,000 

s 50,000 

s 50,000 

s 50,000 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, M!SSISSIPP! 

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Balance Balance 
Outstanding Transactions During Year Ou !:standing 
10t1L2019 Issued 

General Obligation Bonds 
Redeemed 9l301'.2020 

Governmental Funds: 
2010 street bonds s 165,000 s s 20,000 s 145,000 
Municipal building 257,300 23,800 233,500 

Total general obligation bonds s 407,300 s s 43,800 s 378,500 

Revenue Bonds 

Enterprise Fund: 
Combined \Valer and se\ver bonds s 503,183 s s 19,810 s 483,373 

Noles Payable 

Governmental Funds: 
Municipal multi-purpose building s 157,239 s s 13,511 s 143,728 

Total governmental funds notes payable s 157,239 s s 13,511 s 143,728 

Enterprise Fund: 
MDEQ-MTC s 159,502 $ s 10,791 s 148,7!1 
MDEQ-Town 153,105 10,143 142,962 
USDA - water system improvement 1,512,850 61,509 1,451,341 

Total enterprise fund notes payable s 312,607 s 1,512,850 s 82,4-B s 1,743,0H 

Total bond and notes payable s 1,395,329 s 1,512,850 s 159,564 s 2,748,615 

Other Long-Term Debt 

Governmental Funds: 
Compensated absences s 74,762 s 8,356 s s 83,118 

Enterprise Fund: 
Ca pita! lease - backhoe 21,549 17,180 4,369 
Compensated absences 80,473 47,997 32,476 

Total other long-term debt 5 176,784 s 8,356 5 65,177 $ 119,963 

Total long,term debt s 1,572,113 s 1,521,206 s 224,741 5 2,868,578 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



TOWN Of WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE or EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Name of 
Agency or 

Deparhnent 

CFDA or 
Other 

Number 

United States Department of Agriculture 

Name of Pro ,ram 

Pass-Through 
Grant 

Number 

10.760 \.Vater and lVaste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities 

Total United States Department of Agriculture 

Department of Housing and Urban Development 

14.228 Community Development Block Grants 

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Total Federal Awards, All Programs 

NOTES TO THIS SCHEDULE 

s 

s 
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Total 
Awards 

Expended 

274,829 

074 829 

S 1,572,830 

$ 1 572 830 

$, 1,86Z,6.59 

1. This schedule includes the federal award activity of the Town of \iVoodviJle, Mississippi under a program 
of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2020. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirement of Title 2 U.S. Code of Fedcml Rcgulatirus l'nrl 200, Umfmw 
Administrative Rcq11ireme11fs, Crst Principles, and A11dit Rcquircmcllfs for Fcdcml A-wards (Uniform Guidance). 
Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operatlons of the Town of \Voodville1 

Mississippi, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or 
cash flows of the Town of Woodville, Mississippi. 

2. Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures 
are recognized follo\ving the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of 
expenditures are not allotvable or are limited as to reimbursement Negative amounts shown on the 
schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as 
expenditures in prior years. 

3. The To\vn of VVoodville, Mississippi did not elect to use the 10 1}i) de mi111111is indirect cost rate as allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

1< Basis of Presentation 

47 

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents the original legally adopted budget, the final legally adopted 
budget, the actual data on the GAAP basis, and variances bet\veen the final budget and the actual data. 

2. Budget Amendments and Revisions 

The budget is adopted by the Board of Aldermen< Amendments can be made on the approval of the Board 
of Aldermen, A budgetary comparison is presented for the General fund consistent \Vith accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 



INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE REPORTS 
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209 N. Commerce St. 
Natchez, MS 39120 
P. 0. Box 1027 
Natchez, MS 39121 
Tel: 601-442-7411 
Fax: 601-442-8551 

2120 Forsythe Ave. 
Monroe, LA 71201 

s I LA s s IM M D N s LLP 

CERTff!ED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS and ADVISORS 

P. 0. Box 4550 
Monroe, LA 71211 
Tel: 318-323-4481 

Fax: 318-323-2188 

www.silassimmons.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
Town of Woodville, Mississippi 
Woodville, Mississippi 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Town of Woodville, Mississippi as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise Town of Woodville, Mississippi's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 2022, 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, ,ve considered Town of Woodville, 
Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Woodville, 
Mississippi's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of 
Woodville, Mississippi's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material \Veaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control that ,ve consider to be materia] weaknesses and significant deficiencies, 

A deficiency in intema/ control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material ·weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We 
consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings to be a material weakness: 
2020-01. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material 1-veakness, important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. No significant deficiencies were identified during our audit. 

Members: American Institute of CPAs, M!ss!ssippi Sodety of CPAs, Loulsfana Society of CPAs 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tov,/n of \Voodville, Mississippi's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, l\'e performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements1 noncompliance \vith vvhich could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other 
matters that is required to be reported under Govenrn1ent Auditing Standards: 2020-2. 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's Response to Findings 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings, Town of Woodville, Mississippi's response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, \Ve express no 
opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Natchez, Mississippi 
February 28, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORlvf GUIDANCE 

To the Town of Woodville, Mississippi 
Woodville, Mississippi 

Report on Compliance with Requirements for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Town of Woodville, Mississippi's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Co111pliaucc S11pplc111e11t that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of the Town's major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2020< The Town's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs< 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs< 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Town's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above< We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifrng Sia!ldards

1 
issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 US<, Cade cf Federal 
Reg11/atio11s Part 200, U11ifar111 Ad111i11istmtive Req11ire111c11ts, Cost Priuciplcs, and Audit Req11ire111c11ts for Fer/em/ 
Awards (Uniform Guidance)< Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about \Vhether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town's compliance 
\Vith those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

\
1Ve believe that our audit provides a reasonable bnsis for our opinion on compliance for each major 

federal program. Hm.vever, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the T mvn' s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Town, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended September 30, 2020< 
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Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be 
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and which are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as Item 2020-3. Our opinion on each major federal program is 
not modified with respect to these matters. 

The Town's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Town's response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applies in the audit for compliance. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Town, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered the Town's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, \Ve do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School Board's internal control over compliance. 

A d~ficie11cy in internal control over co111plia11cc exists \Vhen the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect nnd correct, noncompliance with n type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A 11wfcrial 7.Uealmcss in i11fl.:mal control over complia11cc is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance \Vith a type of compliance requirement of a federal program \Vill not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis, A sigmficrmt deficiency in internal control over 
co111J7lim1cc is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance ,vith a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance ,vas for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and \Vas not designed lo identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that ,vere not identified, \Ne did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that ,ve consider to be material weaknesses. Hmvever, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance, Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Natchez, Mississippi 
February 28, 2022 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

SECTION 1: SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Financial Statements: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Type of auditor's report issued on the basic 
financial statements: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
a. Material weakness(es) identified? 
b, Significant deficiencies identified that ore not 

considered to be material 1,veaknesses? 

Material noncompliance relating to the basic 
financial statements? 

Federal Awards: 

1. 

2. 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: 

Internal control over major programs: 
a, Material weakness(es) identified? 
b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 

considered to be material \Veaknesses? 

3, Identification of major programs: 

Unmodified 

Yes 

No 

Yes 

Unmodified 

No 

None reported 

CFDA Numbers 
10.760 \Valer 'Waste and Disposal Systems for Rural Communities 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: 

Auditee qualifies as low-risk auditee? 

$750,000 

Yes 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Sli.CT!ON 2: FINAf',ICIALSTATEMENT FINDINGS 

Deficiencies Considered to be l'vfaterial Weaknesses or l\!Iateria1 Noncompliance 

20Z(l_J 
Condition: 

Criteria: 

Cause of Condition: 

Effect of Condition: 

Rl'cornmcnda tion: 

Response: 

Condition: 

Criteria: 

Cause of Condition: 

S~egation of Duties (Internal .. ('ontrol Fi11ding) 

During our audit, ,vc noted Tovvn of Woodville, Mississippi does not have an adequate number of personnel to properly segregate duties 
,vithin the initiation, authorization, reconciliation, and review functions. 

His recommended that no one person should have access lo two or more of the cycles above. 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi docs not have the financial resources to employ the number of individuals needed to properly segregate 
du ties. 

Material weakness in internal controls. 

\Ve do not believe that it would be cost effective for Town of VVoodvillc, Mississippi to hire the additional staff required to resolve this 
problem. \!Ve recommend thal management continue lo implement alternate procedures to help alleviate this condition. Also, we believe 
that the Board should be diligent in approving transactions and reviewing monthly financial information. 

Management ,vill continue to implement alternate control procedures ,vhenever feasible. 

Fin,~ncial S.t.~t1:ment Subn:,iission to $taJe Audit.91J£:~?mpli~1nce Finding) 
The Town's audited financial statements \Vere not completed and submitted to the Mississippi State Auditor's office by the statutory date 
of September 30, 2021. 

To be considered in good standing with the Mississippi State Auditor, the audited financial statements should be completed and 
submitted to their office by the end of the next fiscal year. 

Due to employee turnover, the Tovvn' s management found it difficult to prepare the books in time for the external auditors. 

en 
w 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

SECT_ION_2: __ FINA,NCIALSTATEM_ENT FINDINGS (continued) 

Deficiencies Considered to be Material Weaknesses or Material Noncompliance (continued) 

(cont-inued) 
Effect of Condition: 

Recommend a lion: 

Condition: 

Criteria: 

Cause of condition: 

Effect of condition: 

Response: 

,Financ.I.i:1J Staternent S!Jbmission to St·ate_J\uditor (continued) 
Material noncompliance relating to the financial statemenl'>. 

We recommend that 111,rnagemcnt is diligent in performing monthly and year-end close responsibilities and getting the books to the external 
auditors earlier in the next year. 

Management is iJWarc; of this and is 1,vorking on getting the books to the mHlitnrs earlier in the future. 

ConlJ2lja nee with. R£12.ort.i1ig_.Rmu iremcq .~s o(O M l):-SJrm.!c _ f\ ud it J_Cpm plia nee Findl!lg) 
The Town's single Audit was not filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse by June 30, 2021. 

In general, 0MB Circular A-133 requires any nonfcderal entity that expends $750,00 or more in federal awards in a fiscal year to have a Single 
AudiL The Single Audit musl be completed and submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse within nine months of the end of the entity's 
fiscal year. !n addition to the Single Audit requirement, 0MB Circular J\-133 requires an audit of the entity's financial statements for the same 
fiscal year as the Single Audit. 

Town mnnagcmcnt wns unable to provide a complete and reconciled set of books to the exlcrnal auditor in time for the external auditor to 
complclc the fimmcia! statement audit by the June 30, 2021, due date. 

The Town \Vi1S not in compliance with the reporting requirement of 0MB Circular A-133, putting it at risk for loss of future federal funding and 
considered a high risk for future audits. 

We recommend that Tm.vn management be diligent in ensuring that future financial statement audits can be completed by the external auditor in 
a timely manner. To that end, we recommend that Town management provide the Town's extcrn<1l auditor with a complete and balanced set of 
books within 30 days of fiscal year-end. 

The Town Clerk will ensure that the external auditor is engaged prior to the commencement of financials. All required documentation 'vvill be 
submitted in a timely manner. 

SECTI_ON 3:_ FE[JERAL AW ARDS,__EINDING;,~AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None 
u, ,._. 



Reference No. 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Description of Finding 

Section I - Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements: 

2019-1 

2019-2 

Segregation of Duties 
During the process of obtaining an understanding of the Town's internal 
control in connection with planning the audit, accessing control risk, and 
assessing fraud risk. 

Financial Statement Submission to the State Auditor 
The Town's audited financird statements were not submitted to the 
Mississippi Office of the Stale Auditor by the statutory due date 
of September 30, 2020. 

Section II - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Alvards; 

2019-3 Compliance with Reporting Requirements of 0MB - Single Audit 
The Town's Single Audit was not filed with the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse by June 30, 2020. 

Section III - iv1anagement Letter: 

No management letter issued. 
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Status 

Not Resolved 

Not Resolved 

Not Resolved 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
Town of Woodville, Mississippi 
Woodville, Mississippi 

We have audited the basic financial statements of Town of \1\Toodville, Mississippi as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 2022. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gavenunent Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, 

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we 
have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations, Fiowever, 
providing an opinion on compliance ,vith state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit 
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, 

The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under 
Govcmment Audiliug Standards as Finding 2020-2. 

This report is intended for the information of Town of \Voodville, :tvlississippi' s management, the Office 
of the State Auditor, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be, 
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties, However, this report is a matter of 
public record and its distribution is not limited, 

Natchez, Iv1ississippi 
February 28, 2022 
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